
 

 
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk  

   

Finance and 
Corporate 
Services 
Select 
Committee 

  

Councillors on the Committee 
 
Councillor John Riley (Chairman) 
Councillor Wayne Bridges (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Kaushik Banerjee 
Councillor Kishan Bhatt 
Councillor Narinder Garg 
Councillor Gursharan Mand 
Councillor Stuart Mathers (Opposition Lead) 
 

   

Date: WEDNESDAY, 21 JUNE 
2023 
 

 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape.  
Please contact us for further 
information.  
 

  
Published: Tuesday, 13 June 2023 

 Contact: Steve Clarke 
Tel: 01895 250636 
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  

https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=420 

Public Document Pack

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/
https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=420


 

 

 
Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 

 

Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
An Induction Loop System is available for use 
in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Attending, reporting and filming of meetings 
 
For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode. 
 
Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 

 



 

 

Terms of Reference 
 

Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee 
 

Remit 
 
To undertake the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the following 
Cabinet Member portfolio(s) and service areas: 
 

Cabinet Member Portfolios 

Leader of the Council 

Cabinet Member for Corporate Services 

Cabinet Member for Finance 

Relevant service areas 

Democratic Services 

Corporate Communications 

Corporate Finance 

Procurement 

Exchequer & Business Assurance Services 

ICT 

Legal Services 

Human Resources 

Business Administration 

Business Performance 

Customer Access 

Business Improvement Delivery (BID) 

 
Cross cutting topics 
 
This Committee will also act as lead select committee on the monitoring and 
review of the following cross-cutting topics: 
 
 ·         Resident Experience 
 
 



 

 

Agenda 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 

2 Declarations of interest in matters coming before this meeting  
 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting on 19 April 2023 1 - 6 
 

4 Minutes of the meeting on 11 May 2023 (AGM) 7 - 8 
 

5 To confirm that the items of business marked as Part I will be 
considered in Public and that the items marked as Part II will be 
considered in Private 

 
 

6 Select Committee Review Findings: "Procurement within Hillingdon: 
securing value for our residents" 

9 - 38 
 

7 Cabinet Forward Plan 39 - 50 
 

8 Work Programme 51 - 54 
 



 

 

Minutes 
 

 

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES SELECT 
COMMITTEE 
 
19 April 2023 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 6 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 Committee Members Present:  
Councillors John Riley (Chairman), Richard Lewis (Vice-Chairman), Kaushik Banerjee, 
Kishan Bhatt, Narinder Garg, Stuart Mathers (Opposition Lead) and Sital Punja  
 
LBH Officers Present:  
Ian Anderson (Business Manager, Complaints & Enquiries Team) 
Matthew Kelly (Head of Procurement & Commissioning) 
Dan Kennedy (Corporate Director of Central Services)  
Naveed Mohammed (Head of Business Performance) 
Liz Penny (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

64.     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Gursharan Mand with Councillor 
Sital Punja substituting. Councillor Richard Lewis had indicated to the Chairman that he 
would be slightly delayed.  
 

65.     DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING  
(Agenda Item 2) 
 

 There were no declarations of interest.  
 

66.     MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Agenda Item 3) 
 

 The Chairman noted that the Select Committee had received an excellent presentation 
from the Counter Fraud Team at the previous meeting and thanked the Team for their 
high quality work.  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting dated 1 March 2023 be agreed as an 
accurate record.  
 

67.     TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED AS PART I WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED AS PART II WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 It was confirmed that all items of business were marked as Part I and would be 
considered in public.  
 

68.     REVIEW OF PROCUREMENT WITHIN HILLINGDON: FINAL WITNESS SESSION  
(Agenda Item 5) 
 

 Councillor Richard Lewis was slightly delayed due to unforeseen circumstances and 
arrived part-way through the discussion on this item.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



  

 

 
In respect of the Select Committee’s ongoing review, the Chairman confirmed that an 
independent consultation process had been initiated relating to procurement in the 
Council. This would run alongside the review and would feed into the work of the Select 
Committee. The Committee was committed to value for money and high value 
outcomes.  
 
Matthew Kelly, Head of Procurement and Commissioning, was in attendance and 
provided the Select Committee with some headline ideas for potential 
recommendations: 
 

1. Contract management – it was important to maximise value from contracts 
achieved. Suppliers were better at extracting value from contracts than the 
Council was at protecting it. The exact mechanism to achieve this had yet to be 
decided; 

2. Improved planning – early visibility and action. 12 months to tender rather than 6 
months would achieve better outcomes. It would also support the Council’s 
compliance with the new Procurement Bill which was  likely to be going live in 
early 2024 and would require the local authority to publish plans for contracts 
over £2m occurring in the next 18 months; 

3. Customer of Choice – Hillingdon aimed to be a customer of choice so 
companies would be keen to win contracts and work with the Council. Longer 
term contracts and a partnership approach would allow the local authority to 
build better relationships and drive value for money; 

4. Improved engagement with local suppliers – it was important to achieve a 
balance between social value of local provision and financial value; 

5. The new Procurement Bill would see a move to the most advantageous tender – 
which would provide an opportunity to place other criteria (such as 
environmental, social and governance) on a level with financial impacts. To 
achieve better social value outcomes in the tender process, a corporate social 
value policy would be required; 

6. Increased strategic focus – with 100+ projects ongoing and a team of only 12, it 
was important to focus the limit resources on areas of greatest opportunity. Part 
of the need for an increased strategic focus was around delivery model and how 
the Council delivered (ie internal or outsourced)  

7. Longer Term contracts – to remove administration and drive value for money 
through existing relationships but underpinned by benchmarking and value chain 
analysis  

8. Maximum benefit from Oracle implementation – a new financial system was due 
to go live early 2024; as a minimum this would be an opportunity to tighten 
spend controls and improve spend reporting; 

9. Environmental matters – aligned to the Council’s commitment to a carbon zero 
strategy, procurement had a role to play when commissioning managers etc. It 
was also important to be mindful of cost implications.  

 
The Head of Procurement and Commissioning was thanked for his invaluable input and 
expertise.  
 
With regards to the Council’s net zero target, Members noted that electric vehicles 
were preferable but were at times prohibitively expensive; particularly larger vehicles 
such as refuse lorries. However, there were other lower cost carbon-saving 
opportunities which would be built in whenever possible.  
 

Page 2



  

 

In respect of contract management, Members recommended a centralised approach 
and felt a team to oversee contracts would be welcomed. The importance of definitions 
was also highlighted in relation to terms such as ‘local’ (in the context of local suppliers) 
and ‘social value’.  
 
In relation to recommendations, the Committee suggested some further points for 
consideration - how the Council championed quality, noting the importance of 
demonstrating to residents that quality was equally as important as value and capacity 
planning to ensure the Council did not lose out due to lack of resources. It was 
suggested that, where possible, projects be amalgamated to reduce them in number, 
with the caveat that they would need to be risk-rated prior to a decision being taken. 
The Council would always have a lot of projects on the go given the large number of 
suppliers it worked with; reducing the supplier base could be beneficial. Members also 
noted the importance of policy frameworks to ensure the longevity of the review.  
 
The Committee felt a list of defining factors in relation to ‘value for money’ would be 
helpful and observed that working with local businesses offered both social and 
economic incentives in terms of added value. It was important to use new technology 
even though it was constantly changing and progressing.  
 
The Head of Procurement and Commissioning informed Members that considerable 
progress had been made in terms of quality. In the past tenders had been evaluated 
based on 80% cost and 20% quality; this was now 50% cost / 50% quality and there 
was flexibility in this calculation to drive the right outcomes. The Committee heard that 
Hillingdon Procurement Team sought to reduce costs, improve quality and manage risk 
and worked closely with Councillors and stakeholders to get this balance right. It was 
confirmed that the Council built in evaluation for social value but a better understanding 
of the Council’s specific aims with regards to this would be welcomed and allow 
increased use of TOM’s framework.  
 
Members were informed that the Council would be granted a period of six months to 
implement the requirements of the new Procurement Bill. It was acknowledged that 
contractors would need to be brought up to speed to ensure they were compliant. A 
recommendation in relation to the Council’s use of sub-contractors was suggested. The 
Committee also proposed a recommendation regarding collaborative work and training 
in respect of smaller businesses.  
 
The Committee highlighted the fact that some recommendations would require ongoing 
work while others would be more practical and immediate. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the verbal update and discussed ideas for 
recommendations in relation to its review of Procurement within Hillingdon. 
 

69.     UPDATE ON THE NEW MEMBERS' ENQUIRIES PROCESS  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

 Naveed Mohammed - Head of Business Performance, Ian Anderson – Business 
Manager, Complaints and Enquiries and Dan Kennedy – Corporate Director of Central 
Services were in attendance to present the report and respond to Members’ queries.  
 
The Committee was provided with an update on the new Members’ Enquiries Process 
which had been in place for some 3.5 months. The update focussed on learning to date 
and ongoing work to build on progress. 
 

Page 3



  

 

The Business Manager – Complaints and Enquiries informed the Committee that the 
previous Members’ Enquiries system had been in place for approximately ten years. 
The new system was similar in that an enquiry would be received, responded to, then 
closed. In response to feedback from Members, a new element of the process was 
being tested whereby, once responded to, the enquiry would be kept open for 5 
working days to allow Members to ask follow-up questions and/or raise additional 
points, should they wish to do so. 
 
Members heard that the biggest change in the new system related to the ‘definition’ of 
what a Members’ Enquiry was and the introduction of “Service Requests”. The new 
system enabled service requests and Members’ enquiries to be dealt with differently 
and appropriately. Between 17 November 2022 and 3 April 2023, 1,349 Members 
Enquiries and 1,023 Service Requests had been received. Of the 1,349 Members’ 
Enquiries, 1,127 had been raised by Councillors and 222 by MPs. 1,214 Members’ 
Enquiries had been responded to and closed – 1,032 within 10 working days (85%) 
and 182 had breached (15%). It was confirmed that, during the same period in 2021-
2022, 3,169 Members’ Enquiries had been raised.  
 
In response to questions from the Committee, it was confirmed that there had been a 
drop of 797 (approximately 25%) in the number of Members’ Enquiries received in the 
current year when compared with the previous year. It was not possible to provide a 
breakdown for 2021-22 as Service Requests had not been recorded separately at that 
time; however, a breakdown by service area could be provided. It was noted that the 
figures tended to fluctuate year on year.  
 
Members sought further clarification regarding the 10 working days target and the 15% 
breach noting that some complex enquiries could not be cleared in 10 days. A tiered 
system in relation to Members’ Enquiries was proposed. Officers acknowledged that 10 
working days was insufficient in some types of enquiries to investigate and respond, 
particularly those relating to ASB matters. It would be difficult to introduce a tiered 
system due to the variety of enquiries received.  
 
Councillors welcomed the definition in the new system and the split between Service 
Requests and Members’ Enquiries. It was reported that Service Requests were 
generally being dealt with very efficiently. However, in terms of Members’ Enquiries, 
Members commented that the new GOSS system was time consuming and very 
frustrating at times. There was no option for dialogue and enquiries were sometimes 
closed without a resolution. It was very difficult to manage complicated case work 
within the new system and a solution was needed to address these issues. 
 
The Corporate Director of Central Services noted that the new Members’ Enquiries 
system had only been launched very recently. This was an opportunity for Councillors 
to provide feedback. It was anticipated that the introduction of a 5-day period for 
Members to ask follow-up questions post-resolution of an enquiry would assist in 
addressing some of the issues raised. This feature would be launched shortly and 
further feedback would be sought thereafter. Officers were keen to develop the system 
further in the future with a view to drilling down into the nature of the enquiries being 
raised and prevent the need for them.  
 
Members enquired whether Artificial Intelligence and Chatbot were being explored. 
With regards to a Chatbot function, it was confirmed that it would be very difficult for 
one officer to deal with all the enquiries received given their diverse nature.  
 

Page 4



  

 

Councillors raised concerns regarding the closure of cases which had not been fully 
resolved. The Business Manager for Complaints and Enquiries confirmed that this 
should not be happening –the enquiry should not be closed until it had been resolved in 
its entirety. Staff had been reminded of this. He also advised that the system was able 
to deal with several issues raised under one Members’ Enquiry. It was confirmed that 
any difficulties with map functionality should be raised with the Business Manager for 
Complaints and Enquiries directly.  
 
Members supported the idea of a document showing answers to Frequently Asked 
Questions. It was confirmed that a communication in relation to this would be circulated 
to Councillors shortly. Training manuals were also available.  
 
Members proposed the use of Application Programming Interfaces (APIs) such as 
Tawk To. The Corporate Director for Central Services confirmed that all options were 
being explored to improve the experience including robotics and AI. Trend analysis was 
already achievable.  
 
It was agreed that officers would be requested to come back to provide a further 
update to the Committee in October 2023 once the new system had bedded in.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the report and provided comments to 
officers as appropriate.  
 

70.     CABINET FORWARD PLAN  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

 RESOLVED: That the forward plan be noted.  
 

71.     WORK PROGRAMME  (Agenda Item 8) 
 

 The Labour Lead suggested the addition of an item relating to financial oversight of the 
Council. It was agreed that the Chairman and the Labour Lead would discuss this 
further offline. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Work Programme be noted.  
 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.30 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Liz Penny on epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk.  Circulation of 
these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 

 
  

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Minutes 
 

 

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES SELECT 
COMMITTEE 
 
11 May 2023 
 
Meeting held at Council Chamber - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 Committee Members Present:  
Councillors John Riley (Chairman), Wayne Bridges (Vice-Chairman), 
Kaushik Banerjee, Kishan Bhatt, Narinder Garg, Gursharan Mand and Stuart Mathers 
(Opposition Lead) 
 
LBH Officers Present:  
Nikki O'Halloran (Democratic Services Manager) 
 

1.     ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 RESOLVED:  That Councillor Riley be elected as Chairman of the Finance and 
Corporate Services Select Committee for the 2023/2024 municipal year.  
 

2.     ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN  (Agenda Item 2) 
 
RESOLVED:  That Councillor Bridges be elected as Vice Chairman of the Finance 
and Corporate Services Select Committee for the 2023/2024 municipal year.  
 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 9.10 pm, closed at 9.20 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Nikki O'Halloran on nohalloran@hillingdon.gov.uk.  
Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the 
Public. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee – June 2023  

REVIEW FINDINGS: “Procurement within Hillingdon: securing value for 
our residents” 

 
Committee name  Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee 
   
Officer reporting  Steve Clarke / Mark Braddock – Democratic Services 
   
Papers with report  Appendix 1 – Updated Scoping Report  

Appendix 2 – Guidance on Policy Reviews 
Appendix 3 – Minutes of previous meetings relating to the review 

 
Ward  All Wards 

 
HEADLINES 
 
The Committee’s review into procurement has now completed and the purpose of this report is to 
encourage Members to consider: 
 

1. possible findings 
2. conclusions 
3. draft recommendations 

 
At the request of the Chairman, a briefing to initiate this process was sent to committee members 
in April to start considering findings early on. These can also be fed into this meeting. 
 
Furthermore, at the 19 April committee meeting, the Head of Procurement helpfully suggested 9 
recommendation themes/areas for consideration, which are set out in Appendix 3, the minutes, 
and Members may wish to review and refine these as possible options for recommendations. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Committee consider possible conclusions, findings and draft recommendations 
in relation to the review. 
 
Summary 
 
The Committee has, to date, held four witness sessions. The intention of these sessions was to 
obtain feedback from a range of stakeholders, the procurement service itself and external 
advice.  
 

1. The first two of these sessions were undertaken on 20 October 2022 with Matthew Kelly - 
Head of Procurement, who provided the Committee with the legal and regulatory context 
for the operation of Hillingdon’s Procurement Team. Mr Kelly was supported by Rebecca 
Rees, Partner and Head of Public Procurement at Trowers law firm. The committee 
discussed the Procurement Bill, the National Procurement Policy Statement, along with 
the Council’s own procurement rules or standing orders. 

 
2. The second witness session was due to be held 23 November 2022, but moved to the 11 

January 2023, where the committee heard from the Head of Procurement about the more 
operational aspects of the service, how procurement helps the Council delivers value for 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

 
Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee – June 2023  

money, particularly reflecting the broad scope of goods, works and services procured the 
Council.  

 
3. The third witness session was held on 8 February 2023, where the committee discussed 

the management of contracts post contract award to ensure the supplier meets agreed 
contractual commitments. Members heard from the Fleet Manager and Head of Parking 
Services who both manage significant council contracts. 

 
4. A fourth and final witness session was held on 19 April 2023 with the Head of 

Procurement looking at more strategic thinking around the procurement and innovation. 
At this meeting, 9 possible recommendation areas were proposed for the committee to 
consider which are also set out in the minutes attached.  

 
It is now timely for Members to start to firm up possible findings, conclusions and 
recommendations.  
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
To support committee members in formulating their findings, conclusions and possible 
recommendations, the following is included in this briefing: 
 

1) Scoping report – looking at the original parameters of the review  
 
The original review scoping report is attached as Appendix 1, so Members can be reminded of 
the original Terms of Reference as set out below, and whether the Committee has met these: 
 

1. To understand and review the legal and regulatory context that Hillingdon operates within 
including: 

a. Legal context including The Procurement Bill (as introduced in May 2022 and 
progressing through Parliament)  

b. The Council’s own Standing Orders  
c. National Procurement Policy Statement  

 
2. To understand and review how the Council delivers Value for Money through the 

Procurement process including: 
a. Understanding the need and writing specifications (including Net Carbon Zero and 

other Council priorities)  
b. Procurement strategies 
c. Understanding the market and engagement with providers 
d. Drafting tender document 
e. Evaluation and awarding contracts 

 
3. To understand and review how Officers manage contracts post award including:  

a. Contract Management processes within the Council 
b. How the council monitor and manage contracts to ensure ongoing value for money 

(including sub-contracting) 
c. Manging contracts in a high inflation environment 
d. Relationships with our suppliers  
e. Decisions on extending or retendering contracts 

 
 

Page 10



 

 
Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee – June 2023  

2) Policy review guidance 
 
Members will recall the guidance issued in July 2022 on undertaking policy reviews. This guidance 
is attached to this report as Appendix 2 for reference again, and Members are asked to take into 
account Point 4 in the report, and in particular whether any recommendations they are considering 
are: 
 
● Meet the initial aims / objectives of the review (as above) 
● Be SMART, Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, Time-bound 
● Not be a short-term fix, but a lasting outcome 
● Consider the financial aspect, e.g. cost neutral, provide savings or if at a cost, then 

affordable – and if possible aligned with the MTFF (budget planning process) 
● Are based on a broad evidence base as possible and ‘user or resident’ insight 
● Not create additional bureaucracy, e.g. if it relates to a policy, then to seek to review or 

amend existing policies (unless there is an absolute imperative for a new policy) 
● If publicity or wider engagement or education is recommended, to target such 

communications as best as possible rather than generally 
● Consider ‘conclusions’ as well as any specific recommendations. 

 
3) Minutes of previous meetings 

 
Attached as Appendix 3 are the minutes of previous meetings relating to the review, which may 
assist in Members’ considerations as they indicate the focus of discussions and lines of 
questioning. 
 
Next steps 
 
Following the committee’s directions, Democratic Services will “road-test” and look at the 
feasibility of any draft recommendations proposed by the Committee with officers, the Chairman 
along with early discussions with relevant Cabinet Members, as per the Protocol on Cabinet and 
Scrutiny Relations in the Constitution. 
 
Democratic Services will then prepare a draft review report based on these, for consideration by 
the Committee at a subsequent meeting, before agreeing and submitting to Cabinet for approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



APPENDIX 1 

 

Finance and Corporate Services Select 
Committee 

 

Review Scoping Report – 2022/23 
  
 

Draft Working Title: “Procurement within Hillingdon: 
securing value for our residents” 

 
1. REVIEW OBJECTIVES 
 
Aim and background to review 
  
At its meeting on 13 July 2022, the Select Committee suggested that its first review be 
the topic of procurement within Hillingdon Council.  
 
As set out in Government’s National Procurement Policy Statement (June 2021), 
public sector procurement accounts for circa £290 billion every year. Local 
governments must ensure that this expenditure supports the delivery of public sector 
policy priorities, including generation of economic growth, recovery from the Covid-19 
pandemic, the addressing of climate change.  
 
This document serves as an introduction to the topic of procurement and sets out in 
general terms the legislative and national context to procurement within local 
government, the objectives for, and challenges to, effective procurement, and offers a 
framework for any subsequent review. 
 
Topics suggested to be considered as part of the review are set out within the Terms 
of Reference: 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



APPENDIX 1 
Terms of Reference: 
 
It is proposed to structure the review under 3 themes: 
 

1. To understand and review the legal and regulatory context that Hillingdon 
operates within including: 

a. Legal context including The Procurement Bill (as introduced in May 2022 
and progressing through Parliament)  

b. The Council’s own Standing Orders  
c. National Procurement Policy Statement  

 
2. To understand and review how the Council delivers Value for Money 

through the Procurement process including: 
a. Understanding the need and writing specifications (including Net Carbon 

Zero and other Council priorities)  
b. Procurement strategies 
c. Understanding the market and engagement with providers 
d. Drafting tender document 
e. Evaluation and awarding contracts 

 
3. To understand and review how Officers manage contracts post award 

including:  
a. Contract Management processes within the Council 
b. How the council monitor and manage contracts to ensure ongoing value 

for money (including sub-contracting) 
c. Manging contracts in a high inflation environment 
d. Relationships with our suppliers  
e. Decisions on extending or retendering contracts 

 
2. SUPPORTING INFORMATION  
 
Legislative / national context  
 
Hillingdon’s public website provides an introduction to procurement for the benefit of 
its residents.  
The Procurement Bill 
 
The post-Brexit landscape has presented an opportunity to move away the EU public 
procurement regime and there is clearly an appetite to do so. In the Queen's Speech 
in May 2022, it was announced that the UK public procurement regime would be 
reformed following the UK's exit from the European Union. The Bill will give effect to 
some, but not all, of the policies that were set out in the Government’s Green Paper – 
Transforming Public Procurement.  
 
In its own words, the intention of the bill is to “reform the UK’s public procurement 
regime, making it quicker, simpler, more transparent and better able to meet the UK’s 
needs while remaining compliant with our international obligations. It will introduce a 

Page 13



APPENDIX 1 
new regime that is based on value for money, competition and objective criteria in 
decision-making. It will create a simpler and more flexible, commercial system that 
better meets our country’s needs. And it will more effectively open up public 
procurement to new entrants such as small businesses and social enterprises so that 
they can compete for and win more public contracts. It will strengthen the approach to 
excluding suppliers where there is clear evidence of their involvement in Modern 
Slavery practices, and running throughout each part of the Bill is the theme of 
transparency.”  
 
The bill continues to transition through Parliament, although there is no final date as 
to when it will become law. Committee Members may wish to know what the emerging 
implications are for the way in which Hillingdon undertakes its work. 
 
The National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS) 
 
In June 2021, Government published its National Procurement Policy Statement. The 
NPPS asks that all contracting authorities have due regard to a set of national strategic 
priorities when exercising their functions relating to procurement. The national 
priorities relate to: 
 

• Social Value 
• Commercial and procurement delivery and 
• Skills and capability for all 

 
The detail within each of these priorities will be considered in more detail within the 
first theme of the review.  
 
The National Procurement Strategy for Local Government 
 
The Strategy was launched in February 2018, and makes a number of 
recommendations within its three main themes: 
 

1. showing leadership 
2. behaving commercially 
3. achieving community benefits 

 
In addition to the themes, the strategy identifies four ‘enablers’: 
 

1. developing talent 
2. exploiting digital technology 
3. enabling innovation 
4. embedding change. 

 
Progress towards implementation the Strategy was assessed in 2021. With over 60% 
of English councils taking part in the self-assessment process, the assessment 
identified a number of areas of good practice that are included within the report and 
that may be of benefit to any review. 

Page 14



APPENDIX 1 
 
Although 4 years since the strategy was issued the content of the strategy remains 
valid and many of the principles have flowed through into the NPPS and the 
Procurement Bill. 
 
Links to all reports referenced above have been included within the Background 
Reading section of this document.  
 
The Council’s Climate Change Action Plan 
 
Following a Council motion approved on 18 November 2021, updating the Council’s 
previous climate emergency declaration, the Council’s Climate change strategy and 
targets were updated with respect to procurement to include a commitment to: 
 

• ensure that, where practical and cost effective, all the council's procured 
services are net carbon zero by 2035; 

• support and work with businesses and organisations towards making the 
entire borough net zero carbon by 2050; 

• review the Council’s investment strategy within the next 12 months to give 
consideration to climate change impacts in the council’s investment portfolio. 

 
Committee Members may wish to review how these targets are being met. 
 
Current staff resource 
 
The Procurement Team is currently made up of: 
 
1 x Head of Procurement and Commissioning 
1 x Strategic Category Manager  
3 x Category Managers  
2 x Assistant Category Managers   
3 x Buyers 
1 x Procurement Officer 
 
External issues and risks to effective procurement  
 
Procurement within local government is faced with a number of challenges, 
including: 
 

- Increasing demand for services combined with decreasing funding/resources 
- Continued effects of the Covid-19 pandemic and ongoing recovery; 
- Recent Implications from BREXIT, including scarcity of materials, manpower 

and expertise; 
- Delays due to reliance on external parties and consultants; 
- Rising inflation and the effects of a potential economic recession 
- Ways in which Procurement is used as a tool to implement government policy, 

e.g. carbon zero, social value etc  
Page 15



APPENDIX 1 
 
 
Current data, best practice and research  
 
Further data and research will be identified as the review progresses. 
 
Connected work  
 
Procurement in Hillingdon has the potential to impact all service areas within the 
Council. Implications to this impact will be identified as the review progresses. 
 
Executive Responsibilities 
 
The Cabinet Member responsible is Councillor Goddard, Cabinet Member for Finance. 
 
3. EVIDENCE & ENQUIRY  
 
Lines of Enquiry 
 
The Committee may choose to focus on identification of improvements to service 
productivity and efficiency in support of NPPS. It may seek to identify opportunities 
that exist within the new Procurement Bill or it may want to identify areas of 
procurement prioritisation amongst the competition for limited resource. Lines of 
enquiry may include the following:  
 

- The securing of value for money, 
- Potential benefits of more effective partnership working; 
- How the Procurement process can be used to support Council ambitions 

including combating climate change and delivering social value; 
- Supply chain improvements and increased resilience in uncertain times 
- Ongoing recovery from the Covid-19 pandemic 

 
Potential witnesses 
 
Witnesses will be identified by the Committee in consultation with relevant officers. 
 
Surveys, site-visits or other fact-finding events 
 
Such opportunities will be identified as the review progresses. A possible survey of 
suppliers will be considered to provide useful feedback and evidence for the 
Committee. 
 
Future information that may be required 
 
Further information may be identified as the review progresses. 
 
 

Page 16



APPENDIX 1 
4. REVIEW PLANNING & ASSESSMENT  
 
The proposed timeframe & milestones for the review is structured around the three 
themes set out in the Terms of Reference: 
  

Meeting 
Date 

Action Purpose / theme Witnesses / officers 
attending 

06 
September 
2022 

Agree Scoping 
Report  

  

20 October 
2022 

Witness Session 1 The legal and 
regulatory context  

Head of Procurement 
& Partner and Head of 
Public Procurement 
at Trowers Law 

11 January 
2022 

Witness Session 2 How the Council 
delivers Value for 
Money through the 
Procurement process  

Head of Procurement 

8 February 
2023 

Witness Session 3 How Officers manage 
contracts post award 
including 

Fleet Manager, Head 
of Parking Services, 
Head of Procurement 

19 April 2023 Witness Session 4 Strategic discussion 
and innovation 

Head of Procurement 

14 June 2023 Findings, 
conclusions and 
recommendations  

Member discussion TBC 

18 July 2023 Final report  Member discussion TBC 

6 September 
2023 

Target date for submission of final report to Cabinet 

  
Resource requirements  
 
None. 
 
Equalities impact 
 
TBC. 
 
Background reading 
 
LBH Website - Procurement within Hillingdon 

Page 17

https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/9003/Procurement#:%7E:text=All%20procurement%20within%20the%20London,equal%20treatment%2C%20transparency%20and%20proportionality.


APPENDIX 1 
 
Government Public Procurement Policy Statement - June 2021 
 
Government Green paper – Transforming Public Procurement 
 
LGA National Procurement Strategy 2018 
 
LGA National Procurement Strategy – diagnostic report, October 2021 
 
Draft Procurement Bill 
 
Reviews of Procurement by other Local Authorities: 
 
Dumfries & Galloway Council – Review of Procurement and Standing Orders – Completed 
December 2020 
 
Tunbridge Wells – Review of Procurement (currently underway) 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A: How the Council Helps Local Small Businesses (Considered by the 
Corporate, Finance and Property Select Committee – 24 November 2021) 
 
Appendix B: LB Hillingdon Procurement & Contract Standing Orders - May 2021 

Page 18

https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwiWycLHn7f5AhUSUcAKHcCWDBkQFnoECAUQAQ&url=https%3A%2F%2Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fuploads%2Fsystem%2Fuploads%2Fattachment_data%2Ffile%2F990289%2FNational_Procurement_Policy_Statement.pdf&usg=AOvVaw3XimcedaxaITEBpxg2K6z0
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwiWycLHn7f5AhUSUcAKHcCWDBkQFnoECAUQAQ&url=https%3A%2F%2Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fuploads%2Fsystem%2Fuploads%2Fattachment_data%2Ffile%2F990289%2FNational_Procurement_Policy_Statement.pdf&usg=AOvVaw3XimcedaxaITEBpxg2K6z0
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/green-paper-transforming-public-procurement
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/national-procurement-strategy-2018-toolkit
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/national-procurement-strategy-2018-toolkit
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/national-procurement-strategy-delivering-ambition-second-diagnostic-report
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/national-procurement-strategy-delivering-ambition-second-diagnostic-report
https://bills.parliament.uk/bills/3159
https://dumfriesgalloway.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s27226/FPT%20Committee%20Internal%20Review%20Cover%20Appendix%20FINAL.pdf
https://dumfriesgalloway.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s27226/FPT%20Committee%20Internal%20Review%20Cover%20Appendix%20FINAL.pdf
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwj2warZ3-H5AhWLT8AKHT0LDqQQFnoECAoQAQ&url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.tunbridgewells.gov.uk%2Fdocuments%2Fs59201%2F7%2520Report%2520Scrutiny%2520Review%2520-%2520Procurement.pdf&usg=AOvVaw27WrTl8rTe1seX-qupbXLr


 

  

Appendix 2 - Guidance on undertaking policy reviews 
 
Over the years, Hillingdon’s overview and scrutiny committees have undertaken successful in-
depth reviews of Council services and policies. This has resulted in a number of positive changes 
locally, with some also affecting policy at a national level. Such committees engage Councillors 
in a wide range of Council activity and build a greater understanding about service provision to 
residents. 

Policy reviews generally seek to: 
 

1. Address a [significant] matter affecting the Borough 
2. Seek to improve the delivery and/or efficiency of local services 
3. Consider changes to policies or procedures to improve outcomes to residents/users 

 
REVIEW PHASES 

The typical phases of a review are as follows and set out further below: 

1 Selection of topic 

2 Scoping the review / setting out objectives 

3 Witness & evidence stage (this is the main activity) 

4 Findings and Draft recommendations (possible early report draft) 

5 Final report approved by Committee 

6 Referred to Cabinet for consideration 

7 Monitoring the implementation of recommendations once approved / amended 
by Cabinet at meetings, i.e. in six months 

 
1. Selection of topic  
 
It is always best to sound out and check the feasibility of potential review topics early on, as there 
will be lots of ideas coming forward and often knowing what topic will add most value will be 
difficult to gauge at this stage. It is important not to generalise, e.g. a review into waste services.  
 
It may also not be known whether a topic is currently under review by the Cabinet or Council 
officers or part of a planned service transformation in due course. All of this and other factors 
need to be investigated and in particular, any duplication of review activity should not take place.  
 
Whilst most policy reviews last a number of months, not all policy review ideas will suit this and 
may benefit from a single meeting review. It really depends on the scope of the review. It very 
narrow, i.e. a particular service policy, then a single meeting review may suffice. If a review seeks 
to look at an entire way a service operates then a number of months may be required to ensure 
you can undertake all your witness sessions and secure the necessary evidence and information 
before you formulate your findings. 
 

Page 19



 

  

Ideas for review topics can come from a number of sources including: 
 

• Committee Members 
• Cabinet Members.  
• Council officers 
• External partners / organisations 
• Residents 
• Ombudsman findings 

 
When Councillors or the Committee itself considers a potential review topic, it is recommended 
running it through the Scrutiny Topic Scorecard (see Annex A). This gives you the opportunity to 
‘score’ topics based upon their impacts under the following criteria: 
 

Resident focused Influence Achievable 
Correct remit New Wider support 

Drives 
improvement 

Drives 
transformation and 

efficiency 

National impact 

 
Another way to consider a potential review topic, is to add this as an information item at an 
upcoming meeting on your work programme, to probe the matter further with Council officers and 
ascertain whether it merits a fuller review – again perhaps running it through the Scorecard above. 
 
It is strongly advised that one review topic is undertaken at any one time, given resources. 
 
2. Scoping report 
 
Once a topic is agreed upon by the Committee, then officers will prepare a scoping report setting 
out the objectives of the review for your consideration. The scoping report will show how the 
review can be timetabled and structured, i.e. through themed witness sessions, along with details 
of potential witnesses and other contextual information to get the review started, e.g. lines of 
enquiry or questioning of witnesses. 
 
The scoping report is a ‘live’ document owned by the Committee. Should the review’s focus 
change mid-review, then the scoping document and its objectives can be adapted. 
 
3. Witness and evidence stage 
 
Ultimately, the Committee’s efforts are at their best when external witnesses and residents 
participate, adding value to intelligence gathering and findings. In support of this, Committees 
have undertaken a variety of both formal and informal activity “in meetings” and “outside 
meetings”. It is important to pull together a broad evidence based for any potential findings later 
on. Additionally, the ability for Councillors to bring their ‘local’ insight is highly valuable. Activities 
the Committee can undertake include: 
 
● Surveys / social media 
● Promotion of review to seek views 
● Invite the relevant Cabinet Member to attend for their views 
● Question key council officers 
● Hold informal workshops 
● Networking events, e.g. with partners 
● Have closed meetings, i.e. confidential, such as social care clients 

Page 20



 

  

● Commission reports from council officers / externally 
● Request data and intelligence on the topic 
● Visits to other local authorities 
● Undertake site visits within the Borough or council facilities 
● Appoint experts or advisors to join the Committee throughout its review 
● Selecting the best range of witnesses to get a real user / resident perspectives 
● Invite national experts in their field 

 
Whilst information will be provided to Councillors, it may be helpful when preparing for this stage 
of a review, that Councillors: 
 
● Prepare their draft questions for each witness in advance; 
● Read a witness bio or find out more about their organisation; 
● Do their own additional research on the topic - you may find something officers don’t! 
● Use their network of councillors in other local authorities to seek views; 
● Tell residents at Surgeries / Ward Walks about your review, get their thoughts. 

 
4. Findings and draft recommendations & 5. Final Report 

 
After hearing from witnesses and receiving evidence, the Committee then will meet to pull 
together all the information and shape its collective findings, i.e. what needs to be improved or 
changed as a result. 
 
The Committee will form ‘draft’ recommendations from this, which consistent with the Protocol on 
Cabinet and Scrutiny Relations, are usually shared with the Cabinet Member for their feedback 
and valuable insight. 
 
In developing any recommendation, the Committee should bear in mind the following: 
 
● Meet the initial aims / objectives of the review 
● Be SMART, Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, Time-bound 
● Not be a short-term fix, but a lasting outcome 
● Consider the financial aspect, e.g. cost neutral, provide savings or if at a cost, then 

affordable – and if possible aligned with the MTFF (budget planning process) 
● Be based on a broad evidence base as possible and ‘user or resident’ insight 
● Not create additional bureaucracy, e.g. if it relates to a policy, then to seek to review or 

amend existing policies (unless there is an absolute imperative for a new policy) 
● If publicity or wider engagement or education is recommended, to target such 

communications as best as possible rather than generally 
● Consider ‘conclusions’ as well as any specific recommendations. 

 
Around this time, the Democratic Services Officer supporting the Committee will advise further on 
findings and drafting recommendations. Throughout this process, their role is critical to the 
Committee, to guide Members and secure the information and any witness activity that Members 
wish to undertake. They also work with the Chairman to bring the final draft report for the 
Committee to approve before it is scheduled to Cabinet.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 

  

 
6. Referred to Cabinet & 7. Monitoring of recommendations 
 
The Committee’s report will be shared with the Leader and Cabinet Member and scheduled to a 
Cabinet meeting as soon as possible. There is a legal requirement for any such report to be 
considered by the Cabinet. 
 
Should Cabinet approve the Committee’s recommendations, then they become official policy and 
officers are charged with implementing them. 
 
A post report review is undertaken in say 6 months or a years’ time to see how the Committee’s 
recommendations have been implemented. This is scheduled on your work programme. 
 

Page 22



 

  

 

Annex A – Scrutiny Topic Scorecard 2022-2026 
 

 Criteria scores showing 1-5 (5 being the highest, 0 the lowest). Then add up the total score. The higher the better review. 

Topic Resident 
focused 

Correct 
remit 

Influence New Achievable Wider 
support 

Drives 
improvement 

Delivers 
transformation 
and efficiency 

National 
impact 

Score 

 
 
 
 
  

          

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

          

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

          

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

          

See criteria descriptions overleaf… 

P
age 23



 

  

 
Detailed criteria to assess review scoring (5 being the highest, 0 the lowest)  
Resident-focused – The topic will have high impact on residents and the community, with public interest and scope for making a positive 
difference (can be universal or a targeted group of people or an area of the Borough e.g. young people or a particular town centre)   
Correct remit – A topic that is clearly covered in the Committee’s Terms of Reference and does it cut clearly into the domain of other 
Committees (unless a cross-cutting brief). If it does, then see if you can narrow the focus of the topic.  
Influence - A topic that relates to a service, event or issue in which the Council is in control of, has a significant stake in or influence over the 
matter, e.g. with partners.  
New - A new, fresh topic preferably. One which has not previously been reviewed by a Committee in the last 2-3 years, or which is not 
currently being reviewed by another Committee or internally by Cabinet Members and Officers, e.g. through service transformation.  
Achievable – A topic that is not open ended. One where the Committee’s work programme can accommodate the review. Where there is 
likely to be a good level of expertise and information to draw on to complete. Does the topic need to be narrowed to make it more achievable?  
Wider support - A topic that is likely to receive buy-in from the Committee and wider Council, e.g. Cabinet Members, Officers. Or support is 
welcome from partner organisations to review the matter.  
Drives improvement - A topic where performance levels of a service have dropped on a consistent basis, or the contractor is not performing 
against agreed standards or there are significance (evidenced) complaints or feedback from residents on the matter.  
Delivers transformation and efficiency – a topic in support of the Council budgetary objectives, any areas where service re-modelling is 
under consideration in the medium to longer-term, that with Members’ insight can help to deliver future savings, efficiencies and value for 
money services to residents. A topic where new ways of working could be adopted to benefit service delivery.  
National impact – A topic where emerging or recent legislation mean that it would be timely to review the matter to ensure Hillingdon Council 
is well prepared. Or a topic, that whilst Hillingdon focussed, could potentially be of benefit to other local councils or governmental authorities.  

 

P
age 24



APPENDIX 3 
Minutes 
 

 

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES SELECT 
COMMITTEE 
 
20 October 2022 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre  
 
REVIEW - 1ST WITNESS SESSION - PROCUREMENT WITHIN HILLINGDON  (Agenda Item 
5) 
 
Matthew Kelly - Head of Procurement, provided the Committee with the legal and regulatory 
context for the operation of Hillingdon’s Procurement Team. Mr Kelly was supported by 
Rebecca Rees, Partner and Head of Public Procurement at Trowers law firm. 
 
Procurement Bill 
 
Following the UK’s exit from the European Union, the Procurement Bill had been drafted take 
advantage of opportunities resulting from Brexit, and to reform public procurement to ensure it 
was “quicker, simpler, and more transparent” while “remaining compliant with international 
obligations”. This included empowering authorities to set their own policies, for example when 
creating policies governing smaller value ‘below threshold’ contracts. Officers would in future 
be allowed the freedom to create bespoke polices that could take into account a broader 
definition of value (i.e. not just lowest price), including local business, social, and environmental 
considerations. However, these additional powers would come with the caveat that there would 
be a greater administrative burden due to the requirement for increased transparency and 
reporting. 
 
The Bill was currently under review and transitioning through Parliament, with various 
amendments being made following comments received though the consultation process. There 
was no final date for when it would become law, though it was expected to receive Royal Assent 
in Q1 or Q2 of 2023, before then coming into effect in 2024. Once in effect, authorities would 
be granted a six-month implementation period to ensure sufficient training and upskilling of 
staff, together with the embedding of any new polices and processes.  
 
It had been recognised that there had been an expectation that, following Brexit, there would 
be greater freedom to rework procurement policies from the ground up. However, the new Bill 
contained what were in effect lighter versions of current EU policies. Where the Bill was 
significantly different was through its promotion of innovation and flexibility to allow local 
authorities to design processes that met both Council priorities and the needs of the market.  
 
Building social responsibility into procurement would likely require a cultural change for local 
authorities. The new Bill would allow for a wider definition of ‘value’, which would allow 
authorities to move away from procuring based solely on lowest initial cost, and instead allow 
for costs across the entirety of the contract term, or other benefits. It was recognised that due 
to current financial constraints, local authorities were under pressure to deliver savings 
immediately, and so further discussions on what value was, and how to achieve it, would be 
required. 
 
The Committee was advised that Hillingdon was well placed to respond to newly required 
policies and take advantage of new opportunities resulting from the Bill, through regular 
monitoring and oversight together with support from key partners such as Trowers. Through 
the provision of a six-month implementation period, government was accepting that a period of 

Page 25



  
adjustment would be required. Opportunities included securing better value through procuring 
to a greater number of smaller organisations, though this would require additional staff 
oversight within contract management. 
 
The National Procurement Policy Statement 
 
The National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS) was published in June 2021, and asked 
that all contracting authorities had due regard to a set of national strategic priorities when 
carrying out procurement. These priorities included creating new businesses, jobs and skills 
within the UK, tackling climate change and reducing waste, and improving supplier diversity, 
innovation and resilience. The NPPS recommended that authorities ensured that sufficient 
policies and processes were in place to manage commercial delivery, and that authorities had 
the requisite skills and resources to achieve value for money and increased social value. 
Additional themes within the NPPS included contract management as part of post-Covid 
recovery, and the removal of barriers to entry for small and medium businesses. 
 
Standing Orders 
 
The Council’s Standing Orders were also referred to, as set out within the report. It was 
highlighted that the Committee could be minded to further explore potentially updating the 
Standing Orders to better incorporate social value and environmental commitments. It was 
accepted that any changes to the Standing Orders would need to have due consideration to 
the unique procurement needs of certain service areas, as well as impact on staff resources. 
 
Questioning 
 
The Committee noted the information presented, and sought additional information on a 
number of points. 
 
Regarding the new Procurement Bill, Members suggested that further consideration should be 
given to the inclusion of policies on anti-child labour, conflict materials, and carbon usage/power 
consumption for manufacturers. The Committee was advised that many of these points were 
being considered through further proposed amendments to the Bill. 
 
On the matter of statutory guidance on standardising the definition of terms within the Bill, the 
Committee was advised that interpretation of terms had historically been a challenge 
throughout the EU, and legislation was to be amended to better remove ambiguity through 
standardisation.  
 
Regarding Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for both the Council and its suppliers, the 
Committee was advised that secondary legislation would be forthcoming that would provide 
greater guidance on the measurement of performance and how to address poor performance. 
Currently, Hillingdon agreed KPIs with their suppliers at the outset, which were then reviewed 
as part of the Council’s contract management processes. Cabinet Office mandatory KPIs were 
also included in some higher value contracts, which were then reported on to a central 
database. 
 
Authorities had powers to address poor performance of suppliers in a number of ways, including 
the implementation of an action plan, contract shortening, fines, and contract termination. 
Conversely, good performance could be rewarded through contract extensions or new 
contracts.  
 
It was highlighted that there was scope to review and refresh performance KPIs and 
subsequent reporting, for both internal teams, and external suppliers. 

Page 26



  
 
Members requested clarity on whether the new Procurement Bill would provide local authorities 
with powers to address financial issues that they had no direct control over (e.g. significantly 
rising inflation).  The Committee was advised that the Bill included powers for governing 
procurement in crisis (as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic), including the ability to directly 
award contracts. Additionally, good practice included building sufficient flexibility into contracts 
at their outset to respond to external factors that could impact on the delivery of the contract 
during its term. 
 
It was confirmed that officers were undertaking pre-contract market research and engagement 
to identify further technical innovation and best practice.  
 
RESOLVED:  That the information presented be noted.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



  
Minutes 
 

 

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES SELECT 
COMMITTEE 
 
23 November 2022 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre 
 

 
REVIEW OF PROCUREMENT WITHIN HILLINGDON - SECOND WITNESS SESSION  
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
The Committee discussed the report on Review of Procurement within Hillingdon – Second 
Witness Session.  
 
It was noted that there were various stages of procurement and Members were keen to hear 
more information on ways to make the system more efficient, less time consuming and less 
repetitious. It was agreed that it would be interesting to consider other business models in 
place, the procurement bill and framework agreements.  
 
The Committee explored the challenges with helping and engaging with local small businesses. 
It was noted that in Northwood Hills a local Chambers of Commerce was due to be set up to 
support local businesses with networking groups and events.  
 
It was suggested that the review also explored how the London Borough of Hillingdon did 
procurement with other councils and whether better deals could be considered when combining 
its procurement efforts.  
 
Members were interested to explore how contracts were created with the supply chain and 
what value was being added to the local economy in the way suppliers operated. Agreeing a 
definition for a local business was welcomed.  
 
Members considered that a further witness session with officer presence would be useful to 
answer the points raised.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted and commented on the information presented.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



  
Minutes 
 

 

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES SELECT 
COMMITTEE 
 
11 January 2023 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 6 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 

 
 
REVIEW OF PROCUREMENT WITHIN HILLINGDON - SECOND WITNESS SESSION  
(Agenda Item 6) 
 
The Head of Procurement and Commissioning introduced the report on the Review of 
Procurement within Hillingdon – Second Witness Session and provided a detailed overview.  
 
The second witness session focussed on the operational perspective of how the Council 
delivered value for money through the procurement process.  
 
The Committee heard that there were three broad stages as part of the procurement cycle 
including:  
 
• Pre- tender - Strategic decision making around delivery model, route to market, required 

outcomes and commercial model  
 

• Tender - Technical and transaction process of running a tender process including social 
value and local supply market.  

 
• Post- tender - Management of contract during implementation and delivery phase to 

ensure supplier meets the agreed contractual commitments. 
 
Pre Tender Stage  
 
It was reported that the pre-tender process involved identifying the Council’s needs and seeking 
the best commercial and quality outcomes.  
 
The Committee heard that this stage required officers to engage with provider markets to better 
understand how Hillingdon requirements could be met. For the London Borough of Hillingdon’s 
part, officers considered how the tender was positioned in order to elicit the best response from 
providers. Engagement with suppliers also allowed the Council to look at how others were 
delivering services both within local government and outside. It allowed the Council to challenge 
how work was currently done, understand cost drivers and support the delivery of efficiencies.  
   
As well as engagement with supplier markets, the pre-tender phase was supported by an 
analysis of spend to confirm the scope and benchmarking against others to validate the 
strategy.  
 
Once an understanding was established of what was required and the way in which it would be 
tendered , this needs to be articulated clearly into a specification so that suppliers could 
understand and accurately respond to the Council’s tender. A clear specification was key to 
future phases. As part of this phase, thought also needs to be given to developing a contract 
management framework to ensure the supplier delivers on its commitments 
 

Page 29



  
Tender Stage  
 
The Committee heard that the tender stage of the process was more transactional and officers 
assessed the suppliers’ ability to provide the required goods, works or services to Hillingdon 
through a formal tender process. There were various processes for tendering, all set down with 
the Public Contract Regulations. Areas considered within tenders included:   
 

• Governance / Assurance - H&S, Insurance, Financial health etc. 
• Capability – Experience in similar contracts, competence of teams engaged in delivery 

of the contract, capacity to meet LBH requirements, method statements as to how 
supplier will deliver the contract etc  

• Financial / Commercial – Supplier response to the pricing model.  
 
It was noted that bids were submitted by tenderers and evaluations were based on a pre-
determined set of price and quality criteria. 
 
Social Value / Environmental  
 
The Committee was informed that social value was considered an important component of the 
tender process in extracting value for public money. Officers took a broad view of social value 
inclusion within a tender and how it might be used to improve economic, social and 
environmental wellbeing.  
 
The London Borough of Hillingdon had no mandated approach and retained flexibility 
dependent upon the requirements. This meant that up to 10% of the overall evaluation of a 
tender was allocated to social value aspects. Bids were evaluated in the qualitative section of 
the tender using generic evaluation criteria.  
 
Local Supply Market  

 
The Committee heard that closely linked to social value was the desire for local authorities to 
play a more active role in the communities in which they operated to support community wealth 
building, levelling up, net carbon zero, job creation, skills & training etc.  
 
It was noted that whilst benefits of awarding to local business were clear, there were a number 
of challenges with the approach including the make up  of local business, the feasibility and 
size to support the tender and difficulties around engagement. It was also noted that there were 
different interpretations to what defined a local business.  
 
Over the past 12 months, the Council had taken steps to increase its engagement with local 
businesses including updating tender documents and actively identifying and seeking out local 
suppliers. There was work in place to develop web pages to support local businesses, support 
with pre-package requirements and additional support for potential local organisations.  
 
Committee discussion  
 
Members agreed that there was strong consideration on supporting and selecting small 
business as part of the tender process. However, there were some concerns raised in relation 
to the barriers and disadvantages in place for small businesses.  
 
In terms of actively seeking out local suppliers and avoiding them being a disadvantage through 
submitting tenders, it was accepted that the bigger corporate business submitted tenders in 
different ways as they were experts and had full teams in place. However, as part of the 
tendering process, questions are shaped in a way that allows them to promote their strengths 

Page 30



  
such as being  more adaptive and responsive to meet Council needs. Ultimately a business 
needs to be in a position to deliver services and provide assurances through the tender process 
that they can do so. .  
 
It was clarified that the Council ran multi-phase ‘Open’ tender processes however there could 
be ‘Restricted’ tender process where it was narrowed down to five – eight providers.  
 
In terms of reverse process and local supply market, it was explained that every instance was 
conducted on a case by cases basis to ensure transparency and that due diligence checks 
were conducted. As part of the tender process questions on capability and capacity would also 
be asked to avoid the failure of service delivery. 
 
In regard to improving procurement in the future around social value and the local market, it 
was important to get the balance right and not focus on one organisation. Officers had attended 
conferences at Heathrow to engage with local businesses highlighting opportunity for second 
tier providers. Although there was no preferred bidder register, there was a requirement to 
tender. In terms of the design process for carbon zero by 3035, it was explained that this was 
driven through the specification process and more work on this area needed to be done.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted and commented on the information presented.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



  
Minutes 
 

 

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES SELECT 
COMMITTEE 
 
8 February 2023 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 6 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 

 
 
REVIEW OF PROCUREMENT WITHIN HILLINGDON - THIRD WITNESS SESSION  
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
The Chairman welcomed those present to the meeting and noted that this was the third 
witness session in relation to the Committee’s review of procurement within Hillingdon. 
 
Mr Matthew Kelly, the Council’s Head of Procurement, advised that, once services had been 
procured, contract management was part of the procurement process but was primarily 
undertaken within service areas, with ad hoc support provided by the Procurement Team.  
When going through the initial procurement process, the Procurement Team worked with 
service areas to look at how the contract would be managed after it had been let.  Developing 
strong contract management mechanisms would help to maximise performance and reduce 
risks whilst protecting and enhancing the value that had been built in at the tender stage. 
 
Members were advised that each contract was different and needed to be managed 
according to its needs and ranged from transactional contracts (such as stationery) to more 
strategic contracts (such as fleet maintenance or parking enforcement).  As such, there was 
no single approach to contract management used across the Council.   
 
Mr Roy Clark, the Council’s Head of Parking Services, advised that he managed the 
authority’s parking enforcement contract.  This contract required 20-25 enforcement officers 
per day dealing with parking regulations across the Borough.  Mr Clark noted that, as well as 
the back-office processes, there were a range of linked legal processes which dictated how 
the contract could and could not be managed.   
 
It was important that officers were clear on what required outcomes should be built into the 
contract and to ensure that these were achievable rather than unrealistic.  Sanctions could be 
included in the contract to enforce performance.   
 
The parking enforcement contract had been let for five years with the option to extend for a 
further five years.  In terms of contract monitoring, Mr Clark advised that he met regularly with 
contractors to talk about operational and strategic issues and to look at long term 
improvements to the contract that would provide added value to residents.  Officers monitored 
issues such as a significant increase in the number of tickets issued in a particular area to 
identify if there was something that needed to be addressed to increase compliance with 
parking regulations.   
 
Members were advised that parking enforcement around schools during the drop off and pick 
up times continued to be a contentious issue with some residents wanting more enforcement 
and other wanting less.  Ultimately, it was important that action was taken to ensure the 
safety of the children attending those schools.   
 

Page 32



  
Mr Steve Gunter, the Council’s Fleet Manager, advised that he managed the supply of 
vehicles to different service areas.  The fleet comprised 295 vehicles (including vans and pool 
cars), most of which were owned by the Council (rather than leased), and 60 of which needed 
operators licences to carry commercial products.  A rolling five year programme had been put 
in place to replace vehicles whilst also considering any changes in legislation such as the 
proposed move from Low Emission Zone to Ultra Low Emission Zone (ULEZ).  Given the 
requirement to move to electric vehicles by 2030, officers had investigated the possibility of 
replacing vehicles with electric equivalents but the cost was currently prohibitive and further 
work was still needed (such as the installation of charging points at the Harlington Road 
Depot).  It was noted that a diesel dustcart currently cost around £161k and the electric 
equivalent was around £480k; a sweeper was approximately £75k with the electric equivalent 
costing about £250k.  The current diesel Euro 6 engines produced relatively clean emissions.   
 
The availability of new vehicles had also been proving a challenge (the lead time had 
increased from a few weeks to 6-12 months) which meant that the whole procurement 
process for some vehicles could now take around 18 months.  In the meantime, Members 
suggested that officers investigate the possibility of buying fuels in advance to reduce the 
associated costs.  
 
Mr Gunter advised that he managed contracts in relation to vehicle maintenance, tyre supply / 
maintenance and fuel supply and provided the specifications for the contracts, whilst 
procurement provided the tender process expertise.  When looking a developing a contract 
specification, rather than replacing like-for-like, the end users would be consulted to ensure 
that their needs (and any emerging developments in the service area) were met so that the 
contract was fit for the future.   
 
Members queried whether there was value in retaining a contractor for a long period, so that 
they built up a relationship with the Council and learnt how the authority wanted the contract 
delivered, or whether it was better to let the contracts over a shorter period to keep the 
providers on their toes.  Mr Kelly advised that there was no short or simple answer to this.  A 
longer term contract would give the supplier the confidence to invest in the contract with 
regard to staffing and machinery (the 5 years + 5 years parking enforcement contract allowed 
a longer term investment by the supplier).  A shorter term contract might not give the supplier 
reason to invest in the contract (on things like technology and equipment) and involved more 
administration (with the possibility that there would be a reduced compliance in the last few 
years on contracts such as 5 years + 1 year + 1 year + 1 year).  However, it was important to 
drive competitive tension throughout the contract to reduce complacency and, as such, the 
contract management needed to be robust and benchmarked to identify value for money.  To 
this end, effort was currently being made to put longer term contracts into place with 
sanctions for poor performance (e.g., penalty charges, contract termination, etc).   
 
It was queried whether the Council had a template contract that included general service level 
agreements (SLAs) and key performance indicators (KPIs) which could then be added to for a 
specific service when the contract was let.  Mr Kelly advised that there was an opportunity to 
develop a common set of terms and conditions for contracts but that service areas such as IT, 
construction, social care, etc, would have their own standard set.  Services were encouraged 
to include terms and conditions in their contracts but these performance targets needed to be 
achievable.  Currently, as there were over 3,000 supplier relationships at the Council, it was 
unlikely that these could be managed by one team.   
 
Mr Gunter advised that the vehicle maintenance had been let on a 5 years + 2 years + 2 
years + 1 year contract and had just completed the first five years.  The contract had 9 KPIs, 
some of which were monitored monthly, some of which were quarterly.  If the targets were not 
being met, the contract allowed for the Council to claim back certain values.  One of the 

Page 33



  
targets to ensure that no more than 3% of the fleet was off road at any one time (the 
contractor was currently achieving 2.8%) had previously not been met and Council officers 
had discussed the matter with the contractor to identify what action could be taken.  It 
transpired that there had been a long lead period for certain frequently used parts.  An 
agreement was subsequently reached that the contractor would increase its stock holding of 
these parts at Harlington Road Depot to reduce timescales.   
 
Concern was expressed that a lot of the contract performance monitoring had been based 
around the relationships between the supplier and specific officers within the Council and that 
there was no standard procedure or process that someone else could follow if the specific 
officer was no longer available.  Mr Kelly assured Members that, although fleet maintenance 
and parking enforcement were key contracts for the Council, these types of strategic 
contracts needed tighter management, so they didn’t just sit with Mr Gunter and Mr Clark.   
 
It was noted that a contract management framework could be developed for the Council 
which included a common set of “must do’s”.  If a contractor was unable to meet the 
performance targets that had been set in their contract, officers would look to put a plan in 
place as the first step in getting their performance back on track.  Although the Council could 
issue liquidated damages, it was important that any action taken was reasonable and 
proportionate and so would vary significantly from contract to contract.  At a strategic level, 
the supplier was helping the Council to manage its corporate objectives so it was important to 
have a moderate approach and communicate effectively with contractors.   
 
Members were assured that the Council did not rely entirely on contractors reporting on their 
own performance.  In parking enforcement, the contractor did provide the Council with 
performance data but officers were also able to interrogate the contractor’s systems 
themselves to obtain information first hand.   
 
Mr Kelly advised that every contract would be different but that there was often a three month 
no fault termination clause included in most contracts.  It was thought that it would take 
around 9-12 months to exit some strategic contracts, so it was important that they did not fail.  
However, ‘evergreen contracts’ were typically more difficult to get out of.   
 
With regard to financial due diligence, Mr Kelly advised that detailed procedures had been put 
in place to ensure that suppliers were financially stable.  Procurement officers worked with 
colleagues in finance to check this during the tender process and to look at the impact of 
supplier failure on the service.  This should then be monitored over the life of the contract as 
well as at annual reviews that were undertaken. 
 
If Council policy changed or there were changes to the legislation around the provision of 
services, the authority had the flexibility to vary its contracts.  If a contract was over ten years, 
variation notices could be used and the Public Contract Regulations allowed the Council to 
vary up to 50%.   
 
Members queried how procurement was funded and whether a centralised contract 
management approach should be taken.  Mr Kelly advised that procurement was funded 
corporately and that it reported any savings that it secured to the Council’s Corporate 
Management Team (CMT).  Given the limited resources available to procurement, it was not 
possible to have a centralised team (internal or external).  However, it would be possible to 
set up a framework or set of ten principles which contract managers could abide by to make 
the management more consistent (for example, monitoring financial health throughout the 
contract, etc).   
 

Page 34



  
Mr Clark stated that the parking enforcement contract did not include targets for the number 
of penalty charge notices (PCNs) issued by the contractor.  The primary target in the contract 
was to deploy a minimum specified number of parking enforcement officers across the 
Borough for a minimum specified number of hours each day.  The contactor was not 
permitted to put bonus schemes in place regarding the number of PCNs issued by its staff.  
Covert and overt checks were made by officers to ensure that the contractor was meeting the 
standards expected.   
 
It was agreed that the Committee’s next meeting on 1 March 2023 would be used to identify 
any innovative practices that could be used, or which had been used elsewhere, to enhance 
the procurement process in Hillingdon.  Although the Procurement Bill was currently working 
its way through parliament, it was anticipated that it would bring greater transparency to the 
procurement process once enacted.  Officers were asked to identify innovative ways that the 
Council could implement to meet any changes that might be required by the Act whilst also 
making the authority’s processes more efficient and effective.   
 
RESOLVED:  That:  

1. officers be asked to identify innovative procurement practices for discussion at 
the Committee’s next meeting on 1 March 2023; and  

2. the discussion be noted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



  
Minutes 
 

 

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES SELECT 
COMMITTEE 
 
19 April 2023 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 6 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 

 
68.     REVIEW OF PROCUREMENT WITHIN HILLINGDON: FINAL WITNESS SESSION  

(Agenda Item 5) 
 

 Councillor Richard Lewis was slightly delayed due to unforeseen circumstances and 
arrived part-way through the discussion on this item.  
 
In respect of the Select Committee’s ongoing review, the Chairman confirmed that an 
independent consultation process had been initiated relating to procurement in the 
Council. This would run alongside the review and would feed into the work of the Select 
Committee. The Committee was committed to value for money and high value outcomes.  
 
Matthew Kelly, Head of Procurement and Commissioning, was in attendance and 
provided the Select Committee with some headline ideas for potential recommendations: 
 

1. Contract management – it was important to maximise value from contracts 
achieved. Suppliers were better at extracting value from contracts than the 
Council was at protecting it. The exact mechanism to achieve this had yet to be 
decided; 

2. Improved planning – early visibility and action. 12 months to tender rather than 6 
months would achieve better outcomes. It would also support the Council’s 
compliance with the new Procurement Bill which was  likely to be going live in 
early 2024 and would require the local authority to publish plans for contracts over 
£2m occurring in the next 18 months; 

3. Customer of Choice – Hillingdon aimed to be a customer of choice so companies 
would be keen to win contracts and work with the Council. Longer term contracts 
and a partnership approach would allow the local authority to build better 
relationships and drive value for money; 

4. Improved engagement with local suppliers – it was important to achieve a balance 
between social value of local provision and financial value; 

5. The new Procurement Bill would see a move to the most advantageous tender – 
which would provide an opportunity to place other criteria (such as environmental, 
social and governance) on a level with financial impacts. To achieve better social 
value outcomes in the tender process, a corporate social value policy would be 
required; 

6. Increased strategic focus – with 100+ projects ongoing and a team of only 12, it 
was important to focus the limit resources on areas of greatest opportunity. Part 
of the need for an increased strategic focus was around delivery model and how 
the Council delivered (ie internal or outsourced)  

7. Longer Term contracts – to remove administration and drive value for money 
through existing relationships but underpinned by benchmarking and value chain 
analysis  

8. Maximum benefit from Oracle implementation – a new financial system was due 
to go live early 2024; as a minimum this would be an opportunity to tighten spend 
controls and improve spend reporting; 

Page 36



  
9. Environmental matters – aligned to the Council’s commitment to a carbon zero 

strategy, procurement had a role to play when commissioning managers etc. It 
was also important to be mindful of cost implications.  

 
The Head of Procurement and Commissioning was thanked for his invaluable input and 
expertise.  
 
With regards to the Council’s net zero target, Members noted that electric vehicles were 
preferable but were at times prohibitively expensive; particularly larger vehicles such as 
refuse lorries. However, there were other lower cost carbon-saving opportunities which 
would be built in whenever possible.  
 
In respect of contract management, Members recommended a centralised approach and 
felt a team to oversee contracts would be welcomed. The importance of definitions was 
also highlighted in relation to terms such as ‘local’ (in the context of local suppliers) and 
‘social value’.  
 
In relation to recommendations, the Committee suggested some further points for 
consideration - how the Council championed quality, noting the importance of 
demonstrating to residents that quality was equally as important as value and capacity 
planning to ensure the Council did not lose out due to lack of resources. It was suggested 
that, where possible, projects be amalgamated to reduce them in number, with the 
caveat that they would need to be risk-rated prior to a decision being taken. The Council 
would always have a lot of projects on the go given the large number of suppliers it 
worked with; reducing the supplier base could be beneficial. Members also noted the 
importance of policy frameworks to ensure the longevity of the review.  
 
The Committee felt a list of defining factors in relation to ‘value for money’ would be 
helpful and observed that working with local businesses offered both social and 
economic incentives in terms of added value. It was important to use new technology 
even though it was constantly changing and progressing.  
 
The Head of Procurement and Commissioning informed Members that considerable 
progress had been made in terms of quality. In the past tenders had been evaluated 
based on 80% cost and 20% quality; this was now 50% cost / 50% quality and there was 
flexibility in this calculation to drive the right outcomes. The Committee heard that 
Hillingdon Procurement Team sought to reduce costs, improve quality and manage risk 
and worked closely with Councillors and stakeholders to get this balance right. It was 
confirmed that the Council built in evaluation for social value but a better understanding 
of the Council’s specific aims with regards to this would be welcomed and allow 
increased use of TOM’s framework.  
 
Members were informed that the Council would be granted a period of six months to 
implement the requirements of the new Procurement Bill. It was acknowledged that 
contractors would need to be brought up to speed to ensure they were compliant. A 
recommendation in relation to the Council’s use of sub-contractors was suggested. The 
Committee also proposed a recommendation regarding collaborative work and training 
in respect of smaller businesses. The Committee highlighted the fact that some 
recommendations would require ongoing work while others would be more practical and 
immediate. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the verbal update and discussed ideas for 
recommendations in relation to its review of Procurement within Hillingdon. 

 
Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee – 21 June 2023 
Classification: Public 

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES SELECT COMMITTEE - CABINET 
FORWARD PLAN  

 

Committee name  Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee 

   

Officer reporting  Steve Clarke, Democratic Services Officer 

   

Papers with report  Appendix A – Latest Forward Plan 

 

Ward  As shown on the Forward Plan 

 

HEADLINES 
 

To monitor the Cabinet’s latest Forward Plan which sets out key decisions and other decisions to 
be taken by the Cabinet collectively and Cabinet Members individually over the coming year. The 
report sets out the actions available to the Committee. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee notes the Cabinet Forward 
Plan. 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
The Cabinet Forward Plan is published monthly, usually around the first or second week of each 
month. It is a rolling document giving the required public notice of future key decisions to be taken. 
Should a later edition of the Forward Plan be published after this agenda has been circulated, 
Democratic Services will update the Committee on any new items or changes at the meeting. 
 
As part of its Terms of Reference, each Select Committee should consider the Forward Plan and, 
if it deems necessary, comment as appropriate to the decision-maker on the items listed which 
relate to services within its remit.  For reference, the Forward Plan helpfully details which Select 
Committee’s remit covers the relevant future decision item listed. 
 
The Select Committee’s monitoring role of the Forward Plan can be undertaken in a variety of 
ways, including both pre-decision and post-decision scrutiny of the items listed. The provision of 
advance information on future items listed (potentially also draft reports) to the Committee in 
advance will often depend upon a variety of factors including timing or feasibility, and ultimately 
any such request would rest with the relevant Cabinet Member to decide. However, the 2019 
Protocol on Overview & Scrutiny and Cabinet Relations (part of the Hillingdon Constitution) does 
provide guidance to Cabinet Members to: 
 

 Actively support the provision of relevant Council information and other requests from the 
Committee as part of their work programme; 

 Where feasible, provide opportunities for committees to provide their input on forthcoming 
executive reports as set out in the Forward Plan to enable wider pre-decision scrutiny (in 
addition to those statutorily required to come before committees, i.e. policy framework 
documents – see para. below). 

 
As mentioned above, there is both a constitutional and statutory requirement for Select 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



 

 
Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee – 21 June 2023 
Classification: Public 

Committees to provide comments on the Cabinet’s draft budget and policy framework proposals 
after publication. These are automatically scheduled in advance to multi-year work programmes.

Page 40



 

 
Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee – 21 June 2023 
Classification: Public 

Therefore, in general, the Committee may consider the following actions on specific items listed on the Forward Plan: 
 

 Committee action When How 
1 To provide specific 

comments to be 
included in a future 
Cabinet or Cabinet 
Member report on 
matters within its remit. 

As part of its pre-decision scrutiny role, this would be where the Committee 
wishes to provide its influence and views on a particular matter within the formal 
report to the Cabinet or Cabinet Member before the decision is made. 
 
This would usually be where the Committee has previously considered a draft 
report or the topic in detail, or where it considers it has sufficient information 
already to provide relevant comments to the decision-maker. 

These would go within the standard section in 
every Cabinet or Cabinet Member report called 
“Select Committee comments”. 
 
The Cabinet or Cabinet Member would then 
consider these as part of any decision they 
make. 

2 To request further 
information on future 
reports listed under its 
remit. 
 

As part of its pre-decision scrutiny role, this would be where the Committee 
wishes to discover more about a matter within its remit that is listed on the 
Forward Plan. 
 
Whilst such advance information can be requested from officers, the Committee 
should note that information may or may not be available in advance due to 
various factors, including timescales or the status of the drafting of the report itself 
and the formulation of final recommendation(s). Ultimately, the provision of any 
information in advance would be a matter for the Cabinet Member to decide. 

This would be considered at a subsequent 
Select Committee meeting. Alternatively, 
information could be circulated outside the 
meeting if reporting timescales require this. 
 
Upon the provision of any information, the 
Select Committee may then decide to provide 
specific comments (as per 1 above). 

3 To request the Cabinet 
Member considers 
providing a draft of the 
report, if feasible, for 
the Select Committee to 
consider prior to it 
being considered 
formally for decision. 

As part of its pre-decision scrutiny role, this would be where the Committee 
wishes to provide an early steer or help shape a future report to Cabinet, e.g., on 
a policy matter. 
 
Whilst not the default position, Select Committees do occasionally receive draft 
versions of Cabinet reports prior to their formal consideration. The provision of 
such draft reports in advance may depend upon different factors, e.g., the timings 
required for that decision. Ultimately any request to see a draft report early would 
need the approval of the relevant Cabinet Member. 

Democratic Services would contact the relevant 
Cabinet Member and Officer upon any such 
request. 
 
If agreed, the draft report would be considered 
at a subsequent Select Committee meeting to 
provide views and feedback to officers before 
they finalise it for the Cabinet or Cabinet 
Member. An opportunity to provide specific 
comments (as per 1 above) is also possible. 

4 To identify a 
forthcoming report that 
may merit a post-
decision review at a 
later Select Committee 
meeting 
 

As part of its post-decision scrutiny and broader reviewing role, this would be 
where the Select Committee may wish to monitor the implementation of a certain 
Cabinet or Cabinet Member decision listed/taken at a later stage, i.e., to review its 
effectiveness after a period of 6 months. 
 
The Committee should note that this is different to the use of the post-decision 
scrutiny ‘call-in’ power which seeks to ask the Cabinet or Cabinet Member to 
formally re-consider a decision up to 5 working days after the decision notice has 
been issued. This is undertaken via the new Scrutiny Call-in App members of the 
relevant Select Committee. 

The Committee would add the matter to its 
multi-year work programme after a suitable time 
has elapsed upon the decision expected to be 
made by the Cabinet or Cabinet Member.  
 
Relevant service areas may be best to advise 
on the most appropriate time to review the 
matter once the decision is made.  
 
 

P
age 41



 

 
Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee – 21 June 2023 
Classification: Public 

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 Protocol on Overview & Scrutiny and Cabinet relations adopted by Council 12 September 2019 

 Scrutiny Call-in App 

P
age 42

https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/documents/s46033/190912%20-%2005%20-%20Report%20of%20Head%20of%20Dem%20Services.pdf
https://apps.powerapps.com/play/cbc62b47-53ef-479e-a6b6-56d461595a4a?tenantId=aaacb679-c381-48fb-b320-f9d581ee948f


Ref

Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI  Budget Outturn 
2022/23

Cabinet will review the Council's budget outturn position for the 
previous financial year.

All Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Andy Evans Public  

120 Sponsorship Policy The Cabinet Member will consider a proposed Sponsorship 
Policy for approval will provide processes and formal 
governance where the Council wishes to engage sponsors to 
support Council projects (e.g. Christmas Lighting schemes).  

All Cllr Martin 
Goddard

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Matthew Kelly, 
Procurement

Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

SI Monthly Council 
Budget - monitoring 
report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting out in detail the 
Council’s revenue and capital position.

All Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Andy Evans Public  

131a Hillingdon Water 
Sports Facility and 
Activity Centre - Pre 
Contract Service 
Agreement

Cabinet in June 2022 agreed to progress this project and 
provided for delegated decision-making going forward for 
efficient project delivery. Therefore, Cabinet Members will 
receive a report regarding the appointment of a contractor for a 
Pre Contract Service Agreement and enabling works for the 
new Hillingdon Water Sports Facility and Activity Centre at 
Broadwater Lake, Harefield. This will include dredging works of 
the lake during September in close consultation with Natural 
England.

Harefield 
Village / 
Ickenham & 
South 
Harefield

 Cllr Ian 
Edwards - 
Leader of the 
Council / Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco - 
Property, 
Highways & 
Transport / Cllr 
Martin Goddard 
- Finance

Property, 
Highways & 
Transport

P - Michael 
Naughton / 
Richard Weston

 Private (3)

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 22 June 2023 (report deadline 5 June) 

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - June 2023

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 27 July 2023 (report deadline 10 July)

SI = Standard Item each month     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - July 2023

1

P
age 43



Ref

Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

102 Commissioning of 
services from the 
voluntary sector

Cabinet will consider proposals for the commissioning of 
services from the voluntary sector, aligned to service needs, 
following its decision in December 2022 to transition away from 
the annual corporate grants programme from April 2024.

N/A Cllr Douglas 
Mills - 
Corporate 
Services  

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

C - Kevin Byrne Public  

095 Revenues & Benefits 
Contract Award

The existing managed services contract within Revenues & 
Benefits expires in May 2024. This report to Cabinet seeks 
approval for new contracting arrangements beyond this date 
following a procurement exercise to be undertaken in March 
2023 and market engagement from October 2022.

N/A Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Iain Watters / 
Trudie Eldriny 

Private (3)

SI Monthly Council 
Budget - monitoring 
report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting out in detail the 
Council’s revenue and capital position and other key financial 
decisions required.

All Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Andy Evans Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

All All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

TBC Public  

131b Hillingdon Water 
Sports Facility and 
Activity Centre - Main 
Works Contract

Cabinet in June 2022 agreed to progress this project and 
provided for delegated decision-making going forward for 
efficient project delivery. As part of this, Cabinet Members will 
consider the appointment of the main works contractor for the 
detailed design and construction of the new Hillingdon Water 
Sports Facility and Activity Centre at Broadwater Lake, 
Harefield. 

Harefield 
Village / 
Ickenham & 
South 
Harefield

 Cllr Ian 
Edwards - 
Leader of the 
Council / Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco - 
Property, 
Highways & 
Transport / Cllr 
Martin Goddard 
- Finance

Property, 
Highways & 
Transport

P - Michael 
Naughton / 
Richard Weston

 Private (3)

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - September 2023

AUGUST 2023 - NO CABINET MEETING
Cabinet meeting - Thursday 14 September 2023 (report deadline 25 August) 

2

P
age 44



Ref

Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

097 Consideration of 
setting a licensed 
deficit budget in 
2023/24 for certain 
schools in the 
Borough

Cabinet’s will consider whether it is required to set any licensed 
deficit budget for certain schools in 2023/24.

TBC Cllr Susan 
O'Brien - 
Children, 
Families & 
Education / Cllr 
Martin Goddard 
- Finance

Finance & 
Corporate

R - Coral Miller Private (3)

SI Monthly Council 
Budget - monitoring 
report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting out in detail the 
Council’s revenue and capital position and other key financial 
decisions required.

All  Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Andy Evans   Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   C - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Monthly Council 
Budget - monitoring 
report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting out in detail the 
Council’s revenue and capital position and other key financial 
decisions required.

All Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Andy Evans Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

All All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

TBC Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 12 October 2023 (report deadline 25 September) 

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - October 2023

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 9 November 2023 (report deadline 23 October)

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - November 2023

3

P
age 45



Ref

Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

109 Transport for London 
Local Implementation 
Plan - Annual 
Spending Submission

Cabinet will consider the Council's submission to Transport for 
London for funding on local transport infrastructure projects. 

All Cllr Jonathan 
Bianco - 
Property, 
Highways & 
Transport

Property, 
Highways & 
Transport

P - Alan Tilly / 
Sophie Wilmot

Public  

110a The Council's Budget -
Medium Term 
Financial Forecast 
2024/25 - 2028/29 
(BUDGET 
FRAMEWORK)

This report will set out the Medium Term Financial Forecast 
(MTFF), which includes the draft General Fund reserve budget 
and capital programme for 2023/24 for consultation, along with 
indicative projections for the following four years. This will also 
include the HRA rents for consideration.

All Proposed 
Full Council 
adoption - 22 
February 
2024

Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

All R - Andy Evans Public consultation 
through the Select 
Committee process 
and statutory 
consultation with 
businesses & 
ratepayers

Public

SI Monthly Council 
Budget - monitoring 
report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting out in detail the 
Council’s revenue and capital position and other key financial 
decisions required.

All Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Andy Evans Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  
Cabinet Member Decisions expected - January 2024

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 14 December 2023 (report deadline 27 November) 

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - December 2023

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 11 January 2024 (report deadline 11 December 2023)

4

P
age 46



Ref

Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

110a The Council's Budget -
Medium Term 
Financial Forecast 
2024/25 - 2028/29 
(BUDGET 
FRAMEWORK)

Following consultation, this report will set out the Medium Term 
Financial Forecast (MTFF), which includes the draft General 
Fund reserve budget and capital programme for 2024/25 for 
consultation, along with indicative projections for the following 
four years. This will also include the HRA rents for 
consideration.

All Proposed 
Full Council 
adoption - 22 
February 
2024

Cllr Ian 
Edwards - 
Leader of the 
Council / Cllr 
Martin Goddard 
- Finance

All R - Andy Evans Public consultation 
through the Select 
Committee process 
and statutory 
consultation with 
businesses & 
ratepayers

Public

045 The Schools Budget 
2024/25

Cabinet will asked to agree the Schools Budget for the next 
financial year, following a recommendation from the Schools 
Forum.

All Cllr Susan 
O'Brien - 
Children, 
Families & 
Education / Cllr 
Martin Goddard 
- Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Coral Miller Schools Forum Public

SI Monthly Council 
Budget - monitoring 
report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting out in detail the 
Council’s revenue and capital position and other key financial 
decisions required.

All Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Andy Evans Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC CS - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 15 February 2024 (report deadline 29 January)

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - February 2024

5

P
age 47



Ref

Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

SI Ward Budget Initiative To approve the spending of Ward Budgets following 
applications from Ward Councillors - this will be done on a 
monthly or regular cycle.

All Cllr Douglas 
Mills - 
Corporate 
Services / Cllr 
Ian Edwards - 
Leader of the  
Council (if in 
Ruislip Manor 
ward)

Finance and 
Corporate 
Services

P - Helena 
Webster

Local consultation 
within the Ward 
undertaken by Ward 
Councillors

Public

SI Release of Capital 
Funds

The release of all capital monies requires formal Member 
approval, unless otherwise determined either by the Cabinet or 
the Leader. Batches of monthly reports (as well as occasional 
individual reports) to determine the release of capital for any 
schemes already agreed in the capital budget and previously 
approved by Cabinet or Cabinet Members

TBC Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance (in 
conjunction 
with relevant 
Cabinet 
Member)

All - TBC by 
decision 
made

various Corporate Finance Public but 
some 
Private 
(1,2,3)

SI The purchase of ex 
Council properties or 
new private 
properties for the 
Council's housing 
supply

Cabinet Member may determine, as and when required, the 
purchase of new properties using HRA capital funds to 
increase the affordable housing stock within the Borough. Such 
acquisitions will be reported back to Cabinet.

TBC Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance / Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco - 
Property, 
Highways & 
Transport

Property, 
Highways & 
Transport

P - Perry Scott Private 
(1,2,3)

SI Petitions about 
matters under the 
control of the Cabinet

Cabinet Members will consider a number of petitions received 
by local residents and organisations and decide on future 
action. These will be arranged as Petition Hearings.

TBC All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Public

SI To approve debt / 
write offs

To approve individual case of debt / write offs that are in 
excess of £5000 but under £50,000.

n/a Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

various Private 
(1,2,3)

SI To approve 
compensation 
payments

To approve compensation payments in relation to any 
complaint to the Council in excess of £1000.

n/a All TBC various Private 
(1,2,3)

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS: Standard Items (SI) that may be considered each month

6

P
age 48



Ref

Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

SI Acceptance of 
Tenders

To accept quotations, tenders, contract extensions and contract 
variations valued between £50k and £500k in their Portfolio 
Area where funding is previously included in Council budgets.

n/a Cllr Ian 
Edwards - 
Leader of the 
Council OR Cllr 
Martin Goddard 
- Finance / in 
conjunction 
with relevant 
Cabinet 
Member

TBC various Private (3)

SI All Delegated 
Decisions by Cabinet 
to Cabinet Members, 
including tender and 
property decisions

Where previously delegated by Cabinet, to make any 
necessary decisions, accept tenders, bids and authorise 
property decisions / transactions in accordance with the 
Procurement and Contract Standing Orders.

TBC All TBC various Public / 
Private 
(1,2,3)

SI External funding bids To authorise the making of bids for external funding where 
there is no requirement for a financial commitment from the 
Council.

n/a All TBC various Public

SI Appeals in relation to 
business rates 
(NNDR)

To determine appeals in relation to business rates following a 
decision by the Council.

TBC Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Iain Watters Private 
(1,2,3)

SI Response to key 
consultations that 
may impact upon the 
Borough

A standard item to capture any emerging consultations from 
Government, the GLA or other public bodies and institutions 
that will impact upon the Borough. Where the deadline to 
respond cannot be met by the date of the Cabinet meeting, the 
Constitution allows the Cabinet Member to sign-off the 
response.

TBC All TBC various Public

The Cabinet's Forward Plan is an official document by the London Borough of Hillingdon, UK

7

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee – 21 June 2023 
Classification: Public 

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES SELECT COMMITTEE - WORK 
PROGRAMME 

 

Committee name  Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee 

   

Officer reporting  Steve Clarke, Democratic Services Officer 

   

Papers with report  Appendix A – Work Programme 

 

Ward  All 

 

HEADLINES 
 
To enable the Committee to note future meeting dates and to forward plan its work for the current municipal 

year.  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee considers the Work Programme 
report and agrees any amendments. 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
The Committee's meetings will start at 7pm and the witnesses attending each of the meetings 
may include representatives from external organisations, some of whom travel from outside of 
the Borough.  Forthcoming meeting dates are as follows:  
 

Meeting Date  Room 

21 June 2023 CR5 

18 July 2023 CR5 

6 September 2023 CR5 

19 October 2023 CR5 

22 November 2023 CR6 

11 January 2024 CR5 

8 February 2024 CR6 

5 March 2024 CR5 

17 April 2024 CR5 

 
Implications on related Council policies 
 
The role of the Select Committees is to make recommendations on service changes and 
improvements to the Cabinet, who are responsible for the Council’s policy and direction. 
 
How this report benefits Hillingdon residents 
 
Select Committees directly engage residents in shaping policy and recommendations and the 
Committees seek to improve the way the Council provides services to residents. 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



 
 

Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee – 21 June 2023 
Classification: Public 

Financial Implications 
 
None at this stage. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None at this stage. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
NIL. 

Page 52



Multi Year Work Programme 2022 - 2026
2023/24
May June July September October November January February March April
No meeting 21 18 6 19 22 11 8 5 17

Review A: Procurement in Hillingdon
Topic selection / scoping stage
Witness / evidence / consultation stage
Findings, conclusions and recommendations Findings 
Final review report agreement Findings/Draft Report
Target Cabinet reporting Target Cabinet

Review B: Topic and timeline TBC
Topic selection / scoping stage Selection / Scoping
Witness / evidence / consultation stage
Findings, conclusions and recommendations
Final review report agreement
Target Cabinet reporting

Regular service & performance monitoring
Quarterly Performance Monitoring (timeline TBC) X 
Mid year Budget Update X
Annual complaints & service update report X
Cabinet's budget proposals for next financial year
Cabinet Forward Plan Monthly Monitoring X X X X X X X X X

One-off information items
Scrutiny Introduction (Democratic Services)
Policy Review Discussion & Guidance
Council Strategy 2022-2026 consultation
Update on the work of the Council's Counter Fraud Team
Update on the new Member's Enquiry Process
Human Resources - digitalisation of processes X
Customer Service, Contact Centre & transition to digital X
Staff skills, learning and development (date TBC) X
BID transformation work to deliver savings (date TBC) X
Treasury Management (date TBC) X
Update on the new Member's Enquiry Process X

Finance & Corporate Services Select 
Committee

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting on 19 April 2023
	4 Minutes of the meeting on 11 May 2023 (AGM)
	6 Select Committee Review Findings: "Procurement within Hillingdon: securing value for our residents"
	REPORT - Early findings
	Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee

	Appendix 1 - Procurement Scoping Report
	App 2. Policy Review Guidance Appendixdocx
	App 3. Minutes of previous meetings relating to the review

	7 Cabinet Forward Plan
	PUBLIC Forward Plan - June 2023

	8 Work Programme
	Combined SC Multi-Year Work Programmes 2022-2026


